DEPARTMENT OF THE ARMY
U.S. ARMY CORPS OF ENGINEERS, SAVANNAH DISTRICT
100 WEST OGLETHORPE AVENUE
SAVANNAH, GEORGIA 31401-3604

September 17, 2019

Regulatory Branch
SAS-2018-00554

PUBLIC NOTICE
Savannah District

The Savannah District has received an application for a Department of the Army
permit, pursuant to Section 404 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C § 1344), as follows:

Application Number: SAS-2018-00554

Applicant: Steven R. Ingle, Twin Pines Minerals, LLC, 2100 Southbridge Parkway,
Birmingham, Alabama 35209

The enclosed comment letters from resource agencies were received on the subject
application. Additional resource agencies have notified our office of their intent to submit
comments, and we will include those comments in our administrative record. Once
received, we will provide notice and this information will be available through our
website or through a Freedom of Information Act request.

If you have any further questions concerning this matter, please contact
Ms. Holly Ross, Project Manager, Albany Field Office at 678-422-2727 or via email at
holly.a.ross@usace.army.mil.

Enclosures:

1. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 4, 3(a) letter
2. Georgia Environmental Protection Division Comment
3. National Marine Fisheries Service letter

For News Media Contact Only: Mr. Billy Birdwell at 912-652-5014 (office) or 912-677-6039 (mobile) or via email at
Billy.E.Birdwell@usace.army.mil.
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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

H 2 REGION 4
2 ¢ ATLANTA FEDERAL CENTER
%, S 61 FORSYTH STREET
%40 proveS ATLANTA, GEORGIA 30303-8960
SEP 12 2019

Colonel Daniel H. Hibner
District Engineer

Attn: Ms. Holly Ross

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
100 W. Oglethorpe Avenue
Savannah, Georgia 31401-3640

Subject: SAS-2018-00554, Twin Pines Minerals LLC heavy mineral sands mine in
Charlton County, Georgia

Dear Colonel Hibner:

The U.S. Environmental Protection Agency has reviewed the Joint Public Notice SAS-2018-
00554 announcing a Clean Water Act (CWA) Section 404 permit application submitted by Twin
Pines Minerals, LLC to mine heavy mineral sands on a 2.414-acre property near St. George,
Georgia in Charlton County. After issuing the initial public notice on July 12, 2019, the U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers, Savannah District (Corps) issued a second public notice on July 19,
2019, that included the complete permit application and extended the comment period to
September 12, 2019.

Twin Pines Minerals. LLC anticipates its heavy mineral sands mine will be 12,000 acres mined
in approximately 1,000-acre parcels over 30 years. The public notice describes the proposed
work in Charlton County as Phase 1. The PN indicates that the discharge of dredged or fill
materials associated with the Phase 1 project as proposed would directly impact 587 acres of
wetlands and 7,112 linear feet of streams.

The western boundary of the 12,000-acre total mine area abuts the Okefenokee National Wildlife
Refuge (NWR), which is managed by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (U.S. FWS). The
Okefenokee NWR was established in 1937 and encompasses over 90 percent of the 438,000-acre
Okefenokee Swamp. According to the U.S. FWS. the Okefenokee Swamp includes eight
different habitat types: shrub swamp. mixed cypress forest, prairies, pure cypress forest, swamp
islands, blackgum forest and bay forest. Within the Okefenokee NWR itself, 233 species of birds
(including three federal endangered species) have been identified, as well as 49 species of
mammals, 64 species of reptiles, 37 species of amphibians and 39 species of fish.

The Okefenokee NWR is the largest NWR in the eastern United States. and over 350.000 acres
of the Okefenokee NWR is National Wilderness Area. It is one of fewer than 600 National
Natural Landmarks designated by the U.S. Secretary of the Interior nationwide, is designated a
Wetland of International Importance per the Ramsar Convention and has been placed on the U.S.
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World Heritage Tentative List. which means it may be nominated for consideration as a World
Heritage Site. The EPA considers the Okefenokee NWR an Aquatic Resource of National
Importance.

The 2.414-acre Phase 1 project area lies as close as 1.7 miles from the border of the Okefenokee
NWR, and the proposed mining footprint within Phase 1 will lie as close as 2.7 miles from the
NWR (measured via georeferenced aerial photography). The depth of mining across the Phase 1
project area will vary from approximately 25 feet below land surface in the west to an average of
50 feet below land surface in the central and eastern mine area. The Phase 1 project mining will
include excavation of the geologic formation known as Trail Ridge. The U.S. Geological Survey
has described Trail Ridge as impounding the Okefenokee Swamp,' and the U.S. FWS has
referred to Trail Ridge as a “geomorphological “dam” on the cast side of the swamp maintaining
the hydrology of the swamp.™ The effects of mining through Trail Ridge on local and regional
groundwater levels in and affecting the NWR are uncertain at this time.

The applicant proposes to replace 522 acres of wetlands and 2.454 linear feet of streams during
mine reclamation. However, detailed wetland and stream reclamation / restoration plans have not
been provided. The EPA recommends that additional detailed information be provided on the
reclamation / restoration plans for our review in order to evaluate the feasibility of restoring the
underlying soil and hydrologic conditions that presently support existing wetlands and streams in
the Phase 1 project area and thereby ensure that all impacts to waters of the United States are
appropriately avoided, minimized and compensated for, consistent with the CWA 404(b)(1)
Guidelines.

Regulations at 40 CFR Section 230.10(c) prohibit discharges that will cause or contribute to
significant degradation of waters of the United States, and 40 CFR Section 230.11 requirements
include the consideration of secondary and cumulative impacts from proposed discharges. Based
on the limited available information, the applicant has not demonstrated that the proposed project
will not result in significant degradation, including individual or cumulative effects to fish and
wildlife; ecosystem diversity, productivity and stability; and recreational. aesthetic and economic
values. Excavation and reclamation of the proposed mine area may alter local or regional
groundwater hydrology. Changes in water table elevations and the rate and direction of shallow
ground water movement as a result of mining and reclamation may alter hydrologic conditions in
the Okefenokee NWR. Regulations at 40 CFR Section 230.40 specifically state the permitting
authority should consider potential impacts to sanctuaries and refuges designated under State and
Federal laws or local ordinances when making the factual determinations under 40 CFR Section
230.11 and the findings of compliance or non-compliance with the restrictions on discharge at 40
CFR Section 230.12.

Appendix F of the permit application introduces hydrogeologic investigations undertaken or in
the process of being completed on and adjacent to the proposed mine area. However. no
technical information pertaining to any of these efforts is included. The need to evaluate

' Force, E.R. and F.J. Rich. 1989. Geologic evolution of Trail Ridge eolian heavy-mineral sand and underlying peat,
northern Florida. U.S. Geological Survey Professional Paper 1499. Washington, D.C.

> Letter from Donald W. Imm, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, to Colonel Daniel Hibner, U.S. Army Corps of
Engineers, Savannah District. February 20, 2019.






To: Ross, Holly A CIV USARMY CESAS (US

ce —
Subject: Non-DoD Source] GaEPD Comments, Request for Comment Extension for SAS-2018-00554, Twin Pines Mineral

Mine, Charlton Co.
Date: Thursday, September 12, 2019 6:23:19 PM

To:

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, Savannah District
Attn: Ms. Holly Ross
1104 North Westover Blvd., Suite 9

Albany, GA, 31707

Holly.a ross(@usace.army.mil <mailto:Holly.a.ross@usace.army.mil>

Dear Ms. Ross,

Since the July 12, 2019 Joint Public Notice for the subject Twin Pines Mineral Mine project, the GaEPD Wetlands
Unit has reviewed the massive 404/401 application documents provided thus far by project environmental consultant
TTL, has attended a July 25, 2019 information session and site visit organized by the U.S. Fish & Wildlife
Service/Okefenokee National Wildlife Refuge, has attended an August 13, 2019 public meeting in Folkston, GA as
hosted by consultant TTL and applicant Twin Pines Mineral, LLC, has had in-house discussions and briefings here
at GaEPD, and has received project comments notably received as of today from the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency. the Georgia River Network and the Suwannee Riverkeeper.

At this time we wish to observe that notable elements of the environmental documentation for this substantive
project have not yet been prepared, completed and distributed to us at GaEPD. Appendix F of the 404/401 permit
application cites that a series of reports addressing hydrogeologic factors at the Twin Pines site will be completed in
the future, but have not yet been completed. Particularly notable among these reports is the > “Groundwater Models
of the Twin Pines Project Area, Trail Ridge, Georgia™ — This report will document the groundwater models
produced to evaluate the pre-mining conditions, the impact of mining activities on groundwater flow. and the post-
mining groundwater conditions.” Understanding that groundwater hydrologic effects associated with the Twin Pines
project have been a central concern expressed by federal resource/regulatory agencies, NGOs (e.g. the Suwannee
Riverkeeper and Georgia River Network). and the public at large, we respectfully submit that the 404/401 permit
application as submitted thus far is not complete since it lacks full information and findings regarding hydrogeologic
factors on site and post-project effects to hydrogeology/groundwater. We feel that it is inappropriate and premature
to close the project comment window when such notable elements of the environmental documentation for this
project have not yet been made available, documentation which we at GaEPD judge to be important to our review of
this project.

Thank you for your consideration of this matter.
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Manager — Wetlands Unit
Georgia Environmental Protection Division
7 Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive, Suite 450

Atlanta, GA 30334



(Sent via Electronic Mail) July 17, 2019

Colonel Daniel Hibner, Commander
USACE Savannah District

100 West Oglethorpe Avenue
Savannah, GA 31401-3604

Dear Colonel Hibner:

NOAA'’s National Marine Fisheries Service (NMFS) reviewed the project described in the public
notice listed below. Based on the information in the public notice, the proposed project would
NOT occur in the vicinity of essential fish habitat (EFH) designated by the South Atlantic
Fishery Management Council, Mid-Atlantic Fishery Management Council, or the NMFS.
Present staffing levels preclude further analysis of the proposed work and no further action is
planned. This position is neither supportive of nor in opposition to authorization of the proposed
work.

Notice No. Applicants(s) Notice Date
SAS-2018-00554 Twin Pines Minerals LLC July 12, 2019
SAS-2016-00920 Pine Row Development LLC July 12, 2019
SAS-2019-00140 WB Constantine Partners LLC July 5, 2019

Please note these comments do not satisfy consultation responsibilities under section 7 of the
Endangered Species Act of 1973, as amended. If an activity “may effect” listed species or
critical habitat under the purview of the NMFS, please initiate consultation with the Protected
Resources Division at the letterhead address.

Sincerely,

for

Assistant Regional Administrator
Habitat Conservation Division






